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STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS 

This is a mandatory appeal per Fla. R. App. P. 9.030 (a) (1) 

(A) (i) and §9 21.141 (4), Fla. Stat. (1981) by Raymond Leon Koon, 

from a judgment of the Circuit Court of the Twentieth Judicial 

Circuit of Florida. (R 138) 

Appellant was first indicted along with his nephew, Joseph 

Lester Koon, on October 5, 1981 by the United States of America 

and tried in the United States District Court, Southern District 

of Florida, on November 18, 1981, (State's Exb. 1 October 5, 1982 

Hearing; R 195-196) before the Honorable William M. Hoeveler, 

United States District Judge. The charges material here were: 

Count I: Conspiracy to threaten a citizen of the United 

States of America of the right and privilege to be a witness in 

a judicial proceeding resulting in the death of Joseph Dino on or 

about November 21, 1979 in violation of 18 U.S.C. 241, 

Count II: Endeavoring by force and violence to intimidate a 

witness, Joseph Dino, in a Court of the United States, in violation 

of 18 U.S.C. 1503 and 2. 

The appellant, on November 19, 1981 changed his plea to guilty. 

(Excerpt of Proceedings, page 37) Judge Hoeveler on December 31, 

1981, entered judgment accordingly and sentenced the appellant 

to seventy five years on Count I and five years on Count II, to 

run consecutively. (State's Exb. 1, October 5, 1982 Hearing; R 

195-196) 

Appellant was indicted by the State of Florida on February 
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16, 1982 charging him with murder in the first degree of one 

Joseph Dino on or about November 21, 1979, by shooting him with 

a fire arm in violation of §782.04 (1) (a) Fla. Stat. (1981) (R 1). l 

The jury returned a verdict of guilty of first degree murder (R 

126) and rendered an advisory sentence of death on November 22, 

1982 (R 130). The Honorable Charles T. Carlton, Circuit Judge, 

entered judgment on January 28, 1983 (R 138) and sentenced the 

appellant to be executed in accordance with the laws of the State 

of Florida (R 140). 

The facts are alleged to be that on November 21, 1979, Joseph 

Dino was abducted in a Big Daddy's parking lot, located on West 

49th Street in Hialeah, Florida. He was allegedly placed in a 

red Plymouth Duster, owned by Joseph Lester Koon, and driven west 

on the Tamiami Trail, U.S. 41, into Collier County, Florida. He 

was then taken to a rock pit known as Burn's Lake, where he was 

allegedly shot and killed. 

Additional facts pertinent to the case will be set out along 

with	 each individual issue presented herein. 

The references above and throughout this brief are: 

Record on Appeal: (R 

Appendex (A 

Exhibit: (State's Exb 

Excerpt of Proceedings in United States District Court: 

CExce.rpt of Proceedings) (These proceedings 

are those referred to and attached to Request 

for Judicial Notice of Excerpt of Proceedings 

on November 19, 1981 in the United States 

District Court for the Southern District of 

Florida, dated August 11,1983). 

The appendtx pages are numbered at the bottom center of the page. 
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ARGUMENT 

,'L_Ei~~<~, ,,:)LJ;-~i I!-,!'\;I' J:~A(...I,ir: 
~ . . . ... . , 

..e}~~_"""-:.l'" :--:-_--:.--_---.--;:~~I. DOUBLE JEOPARDY !- ~hld l.I"I""J !J.,f{ 

Issue:	 Did the indictment and retrial of appellant for 
the murder of Joseph Dino violate United States 
Constitutional guarantee against Double Jeopardy? 

Appellant moved to dismiss the State's charges against him 

on the grounds that the State prosecution after the Federal pro­

secution violated the Double Jeopardy clauses of the United States 

and Florida Constitutions (R 47). The motion was denied by the 

trial court (R 214). 

• The trial attorney for appellant filed a motion for a writ of 

prohibition with this court asking for a writ prohibiting the trial 

of the cause based on the Doctrine of Double Jeopardy (R 114 et 

seq.) The petition was denied without hearing by order dated 

November	 15, 1982 (R 131). 

Appellant was indicted by the United States in 1981, charging 

that he conspired with another to injure, oppress, threaten and 

intimidate Joseph Dino, resulting in the death of Joseph Dino. A 

second count in the indictment charged him with endeavoring through 

the use of force and violence to influence, intimidate and impede 

Joseph Dino as a witness in another Federal prosecution (State's 

Exb. 1, October 5,1982 Hearing). Appellant was brought to trial 

on that indictment. Neil G. Taylor, Assistant United States Att­

• orney, was prosecutor in that trial. During the course of the 
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trial on November 19, 1979, appellant decided to change his plea 

to those charges from not guilty to guilty. In the colloquy bet­

ween the court and appellant, prior to acceptance of the plea, 

appellant was required to admit to killing Joseph Dino (Excerpt 

of Proceedings, page 27-28) as follows: 

Q Listen to me, please sir. Did you take Joseph 

Dino out to the rockpit that these gentlemen 

have talked about and shoot him with a shotgun, 

and kill him? 

A I'm guilty. 

Q Did you do that? 

A I'm guilty, your Honor, yes. 

Q Well, is your answer to that yes? 

A Yes. 

Q And the same charge is made in Count Two, that 

you intimidated Joseph Dino because he was going 

to testify against you, and you killed him. Did 

you do that? 

A Yes,s'ir. 

Based upon his plea, he was' found guilty and sentenced to 

seventy five years' imprisonment as to the First Count and five 

years as to theS:econd Count, with the sentences to run consecu­

tively. Seritencewas pronounced on December 30, 1981 eState's 
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Exb. 1, October 5, 1982 Hearing). 

Thereafter, on February 16, 1982, appellant was indicted in 

Collier County, Florida for the murder of Joseph Dino, the same 

person he had been convicted of killing in the Federal prosecu­

tion (R I). On March 4, 1982, Neil G. Taylor, Assistant United 

States Attorney, was appointed to prosecute the State charge (R 13). 

Appellant was arraigned on the State indictment on March 10, 1982 

and plead not guilty. 

Agent Klare, a United States Custom Officer, was the lead 

agent in the investigation of the Federal charges and was indenti ­

fied as the lead investigator with respect to the State charges. 

The State sought to have him excepted from the witness exclusion­

ary rule at the trial under Spencer vs State, 133 So. 2nd 729 (Fla. 

19 61 ) (R5 5 3- 55 4 ) fA 14 -15} • 

In response to appellant's request for disclosure (R 7-8), the 

State listed a number of persons, which might have information 

relevant to the offense or to any defense. This list contained 

the names of fourteen people not related to the appellant or not 

a member of a law enforcement agency. Of these fourteen persons, 

the address given for nine of them was in care of Special Agent 

Frederick Klare. It was thus necessary for the defense to go thr­

ough the federal agent in order to make contact with these people. 

Assistant United States Attorney Neil G. Taylor prosecuted 

the State charges in the trial court. Among other things, he ar­

gued tfle pretrial issues and examined all witnesses on behalf of 

the State at the fLearing oefore the trial court on Octooer 5, 1982, 

as well as during the remainder of the trial of appellant through. 
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the date upon which appellant was sentenced to death. He con­

ducted the voir dire of the jury panel (R 292-534); made the open­

ing statement on behalf of the State (R 556-561); presented the 

State's witnesses and cross examined the defense witnesses (R 565­

1059) (except for four witnesses, who were presented by an Assis­

tant State Attorney, whose testimony in total amounted to only 

twenty seven pages of the four hundred and ninety two pages of 

testimony in the trial transcript); made closing argument on behalf 

of the State (R 1077-1091,1126-1127); and argued all issues on be­

half of the State during the trial. During the course of the trial, 

he on behalf of the office of the United States Attorney for the 

Southern District of Florida, granted immunity to two witnesses, 

with respect to their testimony (R 922, 937-938) (A 23, 28-29). 

During the sentencing phase of the trial, he argued all issues 

before the court; made opening statement on behalf of the State; 

presented the State's evidence; and made closing argument on be­

half of the State (R 1154-1197), 

At sentence hearing, at which appellant was sentenced to 

death, Assistant United States Attorney, Neil G. Taylor, argued 

on behalf of the State and immediately after sentence was pro­

nounced, representing the office of the United States Attorney 

for the Southern District of Florida, while the hearing was still 

in session, delivered to appellant, a copy of a motion to relin­

guish custody from the Federal authorities to the State authori­

ties so that the State sentence of death could be executed and 

delivered an order of the United States District Court for the 

Southern District of Florida transferring custody of appellant to 
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the State authorities for execution of the State's sentence (R 

1212-1225). 

Appellant's trial in the circuit court, Twentieth Judicial 

Circuit, Collier County, Florida was a retrial for the same crime 

(as argued by the State at the trial (R 548) (A l3»'to which he 

plead guilty and was convicted in the Federal court. The trial 

of the case was dominated by Assistant United States Attorney 

Taylor; Taylor, not only represented the State in the trial but 

at the same time, represented the Office of the Assistant United 

States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida. The inves­

tigation of the State charges was led by Federal Agent Klare. The 

Office of United States Attorney, not satisfied with the eighty 

year sentence assessed by the United States District Court, seized 

upon another forum to try the same crime for which appellant had 

been sentenced to eighty years" in prison in order to obtain a har­

sher sentence than that meted out by the United States District 

Court. 

The Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States 

provides in pertinent part: 

1I ••• nor shall any person be subject for the 
same offence to be twice put in jeopardy of 
life or limb; •.• " 

The Fourteenth Amendment provides: 

" ••• norsnall any State deprive any person 
of life, liberty, or property, without due 
process of law; .•• 11 

Article I', S'ection9 of the" Constitution of the State of 

Florida provides-tnat no person shall be deprived of life, lib­

erty or property without due proceS"s of law, or be twice put in 

jeopardy- for the same offense. 
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Since Benton vs Maryland, 395 U.S. 784, 23 L Ed 2nd 707, 89 

S Ct2056 (1969) it is quite clear that both the Fifth and Four­

teenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United States gua­

rantees each citizen that he shall not be twice put in jeopardy 

with respect to the same crime or offense, either by State auth­

orities or by the United States Government. Thus, neither the 

United States nor the State of Florida could have prosecuted each 

of these actions. 

This court has recently declined to modify its dual sover­

eignty doctrine in Booth vs State, reported at page 197, The Flo­

rida Law Weekly,June 10, 1983. The court recognized that the dual 

sovereignty doctrine was created by this court. This court should 

not allow its doctrine to be used as a cloak of respectability by 

the Federal Government to do what it could not do under the Fifth 

Amendment to the United States Constitution. In Bartkus vs Illinois, 

359 U.S. 121, 3 L Ed 2nd 684, 70 S Ct 676, Reh Den 360 U.S. 907, 

3 L Ed 2nd, 1258 79 S Ct 1283 (1959), the dissent by Brennan, J. 

joined by Warren, Ch. J. and Douglas, J. specifically condemned 

the practice employed in this case (with substantially less Fed­

eral involvrnent than in this instance), finding that the State 

prosecution was so dominated by Federal officers as to be, in 

actuality, a second Federal prosecution. The majority in that case 

whi:lefinding tnatth.e conduct of Federal authorities was signifi ­

cantly less than in this case, at least by infetence, condemned 

the same practice. 

In this case, the United States. Attorney entered the prosecu­

tion fromtne very Beginning. rtis clear that the prosecution 

and the inves.ti9ation of the instant case were controlled by the 
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Federal Government and that Assistant United States Attorney, 

Neil G. Taylor, represented the Federal Government in the trial 

of the matter. The transfer of custody pre-engineered by the 

Assistant United States Attorney, so that appellant could be exe­

cuted, at the sentence hearing where he acted ostensibly for the 

State and in his role as Assistant United States Attorney adds 

validity to the fact that the predominant prosecutorial interests 

involved were the Federal authority's. Participation by State 

authorities was pro forma and minimal. The State prosecution was 

a sham to veil actions by the Federal authorities to evade con­

stitutional proscription. 

It is clear that the State and Federal interests were sub­

stantially similiar. The gravamen of the Federal indictment was 

that appellant violated the civil rights of Joseph Dino by killing 

him (State's ExIl. 1, October 5th hearing); while the indictment 

by the State of Florida charged the appellant with the murder of 

Joseph Dino (R 1). Further,the sentence in the Federal trial was 

for eighty years (State's Exb. 1, October 5th hearing) while the 

possible sentence in the State trial for a capital felony is life, 

or death by execution. Essentially, an eighty year sentence for a 

fifty year old man, as is appellant, is a life sentence. Therefore, 

the penalties are subs,tantially the same. 

This court should not allow the Federal authorities to use 

the courts of the state to accomplish aims which are illegal and 

prohibited to it under the Fifth Amendment to the United States 

Constitution. The court should not put its seal of approval on 

this action. It sfiould not invoke its doctrine of dual sovereignty 

in this action. It S'hould not allow its doctrine of dual sovereignty 
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to be utilized by the Federal government to accomplish its ill ­

egal aims. This court should find that the trial in the State 

court in this case consitutes double jeopardy prohibited by the 

United States Constitution and dismiss the charges herein against 

appellant. 

II. MOTION FOR CONTINUANCE 

Issue:	 Did the court err in denying appellant's 
motion for continuance based on the fail ­
ure to receive reports of court appointed 
physicians prior to trial? 

Defendant filed his motion for appointment of expert for 

psychiatric examination (R 67). Pursuant to that motion, the 

court appointed Drs. Wald, Lombil10 and Collins to examine the 

appellant and to render written reports to the court and to the 

attorneys. The doctors were ordered to evaluate the appellant 

to determine his mental competency and in paragraph 4 of said 

order were asked to determine 

" •••whether there was an absence of an exercise 
of independent judgment and volition on the part 
of the accus'ed in consuming an intoxicant at the 
time of the unlawful act •••• " (R 79) 

By letter dated October 18, 1982, Dr. Wa1d expressed a need 

for examination by neurologists and psychologists (R 90) (A 1) • 

Dr. Ertag, a neurologist, was appointed to examine the appellant 

CR 911. 

On Novemfier 15th,theday before the trial, appellant moved 
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for continuance because results of the examination ordered by 

the court had not been received and that even if such results 

were received during the trial, appellant's counsel would not 

have sufficient time to analyze the contents of the reports and 

formulate a plan for the implementation of the results of the 

examination (R 112). 

As the court convened the next day, for the trial of the 

case, appellant's motion for continuance was argued to the court 

(R 286-290) (A 6-10). At that time, Dr. Lombillo's report had been 

received the night before. Dr. Collins' report had also been rec­

ieved and he opined that appellant was competent to stand trial. 

He diagnosed appellant as "acute and chronic alcoholism and anti ­

social personality". He did not address himself to the question 

of impairment of judgment because of intoxication at the time of 

the alleged act, as required by the court's order nor did he refer 

to the neurological examination. Dr. Lombillo indicated " .•• it is 

possible that through exce~sive and long continued use of intoxi­

cants, his judgment might have been impaired and this would have 

an influence on his actions.•.• " Dr. Lombillo stated that he did 

not have the results of the neurological evaluation and that " •.• 1 

feel that this evaluation should be an integral part of his com­

plete evaluation•••. I' He did not render a diagnosis. Dr. Wald's 

report was not receive? until several days into the trial. It is 

dated November 17, 19.82. Dr. Wald found the appellant competent 

to stand trial but did not address himself to the question whether 

or not appellant's judgment was impaired by consumption of an in­

toxicant atth.eti'meof tfte unlawful act, as ordered by the court. 
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His diagnosis was alcoholism and possible mild organic brain 

syndrome secondary to excessive alcoholism. Dr. Ertag's report 

was not received during the cour'se of the trial. 

On the day of the alleged murder, appellant and two others 

bought three fifths of liquor and a couple of six-packs of beer, 

all consumed before the day was out (R 760). In addition, on the 

way home, appellant had two beers (R 764). At the time appellant 

and J.L. Koon were alleged to have left home to meet the deceased, 

Joseph Dino, they were both feeling "really high" (R 767). 

Witness George Burton, appellant's step-son, testified that 

appellant drinks "very lot" and that he was drinking that morning 

and after he came home from work in the evening; that he was pretty 

drunk and staggering at the time appellant left home in the com­

pany of J.L. Koon (When appellant and J.L. Koon were alleged to 

have gone to meet the deceased, Joseph Dino) (R 931-932) (A 25-26). 

Appellant's wife, Peggy Koon,testified that appellant had 

drank at least a quart of Whiskey a day for thirteen years, some-' 

times supplemented by a couple of half pints and maybe a few beers 

CR 10051 (A 441. About five years prior to trial, under a threat 

of divorce, appellant quit drinking for about four months and then 

started back again, "except more" (R 1008); that he kept a quart of 

whiskey in his truck and another on the end of the drain board; 

that she met him at the intersection of Krome Avenue and Highway 

41 [the same evening and after he is alleged to have killed Joseph 

Dino); that she had never seen him drunker than he was at that time; 

he was weavin<3 when he walked, his speech was slurry and he was 

mumbling to himself (R 1008-1009) (A 47-48). She further testified 
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that when he is drunk, he repeats himself and doesn't remember 

things and related three specific examples of loss of memory (R 

1005-1007) (A 44-46). 

Under Florida Law, voluntary intoxication is not insanity 

and thus not a complete defense to homicide, however, it is a 

defense available to negate specific intent " ••. such as the ele­

ment of premeditation essential in first degree murder •••. " 

Cirack vs State, 201 So. 2nd 706, 709 (Fla. 1967) In Garner vs 

State, 28 Fla. 113,9 So. 835 (1891) the court stated at page 845 

of the Southern Reporter: 

"Whenever, however, a specific or particular 
intent is an essential or constituent element 
of the offense, intoxication, though voluntary, 
becomes a matter for consideration, or is re­
levant eviderice,with reference to the capacity 
or ability of the accused to form or entertain 
the particular intent, or upon the question 
whether the accused was in such a condition of 
mind as to forma premeditated design. Where a 
party is too drunk to entertain or be capable 
of forming the essential particular intent, 
such intent can, of course, not exist, and no 
offense, of which such intent is a necessary 
ingredient, can be perpetrated•.•• " 

* * * 
II ' ••• But where murder is divided by statute 
into two degrees, and to constitute it in the 
first degree there must be the specific intent 
to take life, this specific interit does not in 
fact exist: and the murder is not in this de­
g-ree where one, not meaning to commit a homicide, 
becomes so drunk as to be incapable of intending­
to do it, and then, in this condition, kills a 
man. In such case the court holds that the 
offense of murder is only in the second degree 
•••• " Cpo 845) 

Therefore, voluntary intoxi.cation is available as a defense to 

the iss:ueof intent required by .a charg-eof murder in the first 

degree.· 
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The court had previously determined that it was necessary 

to have expert evaluation with respect to intoxication and its 

affect on impairment of appellant's ability to form the intent 

necessary to justify a finding of murder in the first degree. 

The court had also determined that a neurological examination 

was necessary and had appointed Dr. Ertag for that purpose. Some­

time between filing appellant's motion for continuance and the 

commencement of the trial thefollmving morning, the written re­

ports of Dr. Collins and Dr. Lombillo were delivered. Dr. Collins, 

while finding appellant competent did not address himself to the 

issue addressed in the court's order as stated above and presented 

here. Dr. Lombillo, while finding him competent to stand trial, 

reported that it was possible through excessive and long continued 

use of intoxicants, his judgment might have been impaired and this 

would have an influence on his actions. He also stated that the 

j, neurological evaluation should be an integral part of his evalua­


tion of appellant.
 

Appellant's trial counsel pointed out to the court that vol­

untary intoxication as it related to ability to form intent is a 

defense to murder in the first degree (R 287) (Al)i stated that he 

was unprepared to 90 to trial because there was no way that he could 

respond, evaluate or implement anythin9 the doctors had said, or 

might report during the trial and asked the court for additional 

time to do so fR 288) fA 8). The court had been made aware of the 

possibility of this'meritorious defense asset out in Dr. Lombillo's 

report and that Dr. Lombillo felt it necessary to have the neurolo­

gist's' report as part of Ilis evaluation of appellant. The court 

was' aware that the reportS' of the other physicians, including the 
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neurologist's report, were not available. The court denied the 

motion for continuance (R 290). 

In Shephard vs State, 46 So. 2nd 880 (Fla. 1950), this court 

recognized that established law required that no person accused 

of a serious crime should be forced into trial without opportunity 

to properly prepare his defense. In United States vs Chavis, 486 

F. 2nd 1290 (D.C. Cir. 1973) the Court of Appeals held that ade­

quate psychiatric assistance in preparing a defense was necessary, 

holding in that case that defendant was entitled to his own psy­

chiatrist to assist in preparing his defense. While that issue is 

not in this case ,and while competent phys,icians were appointed by 

the trial court to assist in preparation of an adequate defense, 

the reports of those physicians were not made available to the 

appellant in a manner timely enough to allow the information therein 

to be used in formulating a highly possible meritorious defense. 

For all intents and purposes, with respect to the intoxication de­

fense, it is as if the court refused to make the appointments in 

the first instance. 

As, stated earlier, of the two reports available at the commence­

ment of trial, one did not address itself to the issue and the other 

report s'tated that appellant's judgment may have well been affected 

By intoxtcants but that additional examination was necessary for 

s'uch.evaluation. In United Sta'tes vs Walker, 537 F. 2nd 1192 

C4th~ Cir. 19,761, where psychiatrists had been appointed to determine 

B.otftcompetericeto stand trial and capacity to comrni t the offense 

alleged, rflitreported only as to his competency to stand trial and 

where such report was received by the defense counsel only shortly 
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before trial, the denial of a motion for continuance was error 

stating " ••• It is altogether possible that if a proper psychia­

tric report had been furnished to counsel in the course of his 

preparation for trial he might have been able to develop a mer­

itorious defense •.•. " (po 1195) 

In United States vsFessel, 531 F. 2nd 1275 (5th eire 1976) 

appellant contended that the failure of his attorney to prepare an 

insanity defense by showing as probable, incompetence at the time 

of the offense, violated his Sixth Amendment right to effective 

assistance of counsel, specifically by his attorney's failure to 

move for a court appointed psychiatrist to assist in theprepara­

tion of the insanity defense. The court held such a failure to 

be a denial of minimally effective representation guaranteed by 

the Sixth Amendment. In this case, appellant's attorney did move 

for the appointment of the necessary physicians for preparing the 

defense but the absence of the reports of their evaluations prior 

to the commencement of trial effectively prevented such a defense 

from being prepared based upon such evaluations and thus the Court's 

failure to grant the continuance is contrary to due process gua­

rantees of the United States and Florida Consitutions. If counsel 

was derelict in not caus'ing said reports to be produced in a timely 

fashion, appellant was denied effective assistance of counsel as 

required by BotlttheFlorida and Unite'd states Constitutions. 

The right to counsel guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment means 

the effectiveass'is,tance of counsel and effective assistance re­

qUires,timefor preparation. Due process within the meaning of 

the Fourteenth Amendment also requires it. Powell YsAlabama, 
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287 u.s. 45, 53 S Ct 55, 77 L Ed 158 (1932). 

" •.• Time for preparation, where mental comp­
etency is in question and there is a fair 
factual basis as here for the question, would 
at least include a reasonable time within 
which to have a defendant examined, and for 
preparation of such defense as might be based 
on the facts developed by the examination ...... 
Hintz vs Beto, 379 F. 2nd 937, 941 (5th Cir. 
196'7) 

In that case, a psychiatrist was appointed and reported the 

results of his examination to the prosecutor's office on Wed­

nesday or Thursday prior to commencement of the trial on the 

following Monday, stating that the appellant was sane. Such 

was reported to defense counsel on Thursday or Friday. There-

port of the psychiatrist was put in written form on Friday and 

filed with the court on Monday, as the trial was about to comm­

ence. Defense counsel filed a written motion for continuance on 

the ground that he had not had opportunity to examine or study 

the results of the examination by the psychiatrist. The motion 

was overruled. The Fifth Circuit held that the denial of the 

motion for continuance was error, as a denial of effective assis­

tance of counsel guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment. 

In thIs case, failure of the trial court to grant the motion 

for continuance, especially in light of: 

U) The reports of two of the four phy­
sicians appointed by the court had been 
received either the evening before or 
the morning of the commencement of trial. 
The reports of the two other physicians 
had not been received. 

(2) Dr. Wald's report had not been 
received and when received later in 
the trial, did not address itself to 
that portion of the evaluation ordered 
by the court whIch may have established 
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a meritorious defense to the charge of 
first degree murder and was thus not 
available to appellant. 

(3) Dr. Ertag's report was not avail ­
able to the defense at any time during 
the trial which Dr. Lombillo had speci­
fically stated was necessary for his 
evaluation. 

(4) One of the two reports received 
(Collins' report) did not address itself 
to a part of the evaluation ordered by 
the court, which said evaluation may 
have revealed a meritorious defense to 
the change of first degree murder. 

(5) The other report (Lombillol rec...., 
eived by the court clearly indicated 
the likelihood of a meritorious def,,", 
enseto the charge of first degree 
murder but that additional testing 
was necessary. 

The failure of the trial court to grant appellant's motion for 

continuance was clearly an abuse of discretion and violated app­

ellants constitutional guarantees provided in the Fifth, Sixth 

and F'ourteenthAmendmentsto the United States constitution and 

further provided by Article I, Section 9 and Section 16 of the 

This error requires that the verdict and judgment of g'uilt 

be reversed and this case be remanded to the trial court for a 

newtri::al. 

IT!:'. WITHERSPOON ISSUE 

Issue:	 Did the dismissal of prospective juror Astling 
for caus:eviolateth.erule established by the 
United 5tates~ Supreme Court in' With'erspoon vs 
Illinois''? 
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On voir dire, the Assistant United States Attorney exam­

ined the Venirewoman as follows: (commencing at R 474) 

MR. TAYLOR: All right. Specifically, let me ask you, 

Mr. Hedley, and you, Mrs. Astling, if the two of you can con­

sider rendering the imposition of the death penalty? Do you 

have any problems with that, Mrs. Astling? 

MS. ASTLING: At this point in my life, yes, I do. I 

just -- I wouldn't want that responsibility. 

MR. TAYLOR: All right. Let me ask you then, are you 

reconcilably [sic] committed to vote against the death penalty 

regardless of the circumstances? I ne.ed you to think carefully. 

These are very important questions. 

MS. ASTLING: I have been thinking about it, yes. 

MR. TAYLOR: The only thing I ask is that answer candidly. 

Nobody is ever punished for your truthful answers. 

MS. ASTLING: Right now, I don't think I could. 

MR. TAYLOR: Do you feel, Mrs. Astling, that as a result 

of your reluctance to impose the death penalty, knowing that 

there's two phases of thetrialj the guilt phase and the sen­

tencin<i!f phase, that your reluctance to impose a death penalty 

might influence your verdi.ct with regard to the guilt phase of 

the trial knowing that were you to return a verdict of guilty 

and then might carryover to a position where you would be 

called upon to make a recommendation as to the death sentence? 

MS. AS'TLTNG: No, that wouldn't affect it. 

MR. TAYLOR: Would you, as the way you feel right now at 

this phase in your life, never vote to impose the death. penalty 

under any' set of circums·tances? 
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MS. ASTLING: I didn't say that. I don't know what I'm 

going to feel like in the future, but right now, all I can say 

is what I feel now. 

MR. TAYLOR: And right now you could not vote to impose it? 

MS. ASTLING: Right On. (R 474-476) 

Defense counsel then interrogated Venirewoman Astling as follows: 

Ms. Astling, I want to talk about that capital punishment. 

Ask you this, if there is a finding of guilt as to the crime in 

the first phase, and after that, if you're asked to deliberate 

as to whether the death penalty should be imposed, would you auto­

matically vote against the imposition of capital punishment re­

gardless of what the evidence said? 

MS. ASTLING: Well, I would not want to say that I auto­

matically, because I haven't heard the evidence. I guess I just 

have to make up my mind then, but I wouldn't want -- I wouldn't 

want to make that decision, okay? 

MR. McDONNELL: Right. Now, would your attitude toward the 

death penalty prevent you from making a finding of innocence or 

guilt in th~s case? 

MS. ASTLING: I don't think that would affect that, no (R 480). 

There followed a bench conference at which the Assistant United 

States Attorney moved to challenge Ms. Astling for cause, stating 

that she had answered that at this stage of her life she could 

not vote to impos~the death penalty under any conceivable set of 

circumstances and becaus~ of that feeling, could not consider the 

death penalty in this cas'e CR 4811 fA 11). The defense objected 

to her dismi,ssal. The bench conference was concluded and the court 

addressed the following questions to Veriirewoman Astl~ng: 
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liTHE COURT: Now, let me ask you this question. You stated 

that in your stage of life that more or less that you are opposed 

to capital punishment. Is that correct? 

MS. ASTLING: Yes, it is. 

THE COURT: All right. In the second phase of the trial, 

would that mean regardless of facts and circumstances involved in 

this case, that you are, so to speak, going to say or recommend 

or vote to recommend to the court that the death penalty not be 

imposed? 

MS. ASTLING: Yes. I think that's -­

THE COURT: So that would be your answer in the second 

phase? You would almost automatically recommend to me through 

your vote that it should be imposed? Is that right? (emphasis 

supplied) 

MS. ASTLING: It would influence me, yes. 

THE COURT: All right, fine. Then that being the case, you 

may step down and thank you very much, .•. " (R 482-484) 

It is clear that the dismissal of Ms. Astling violates the 

rule of Witherspoon vs Illinois, 391 U.S. 510, 88 S Ct 1770, 20 L 

Ed 2nd 776 (1968) and this court's most recent opinion in Chandler 

vs State, Case No. 60,790, JUly 28,1983. Clearly her feelings 

with respect to the death penalty would not affect her ability to 

return a verdict of guilty, if such a verdict were warranted by 

the evidence. When asked directly whether or not she would auto­

matically vote against the imposition of capital punishment regard­

less of the evidence, she said that she could not do so automatic­

ally because ".•• 1 haven't heard the evidence. I guess I just have 
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to make up my mind then, ••. " In response to questions by the 

court, she stated that in that stage of her life, she was more 

or less opposed to capital punishment. The court then asked her 

whether she would recommend against the death penalty, regard­

less of the facts and circumstances in the case; her answer was 

incomplete, as she was cut off by the court. The court then 

asked her if you would "almost automatically" recommend against 

the death penalty. She answered, "It would influence me, yes." 

In Chandler, this court quoted the last paragraph of note 

21 to the opinion in Witherspoon: 

" 'We repeat, however, that nothing we say today 
bears upon the power of a State to execute a de­
fendant sentenced to death by a jury from which 
the only veniremen who were in fact excluded for 
cause were those who made unmistakably clear (1) 
that they would automatically vote against the 
imposition of capital punishment without regard 
to any evidence that might be developed at the 
trial of the case before them, or (2) that their 
attitude toward the death penalty would prevent 
them from making an impartial decision as to the 
defendant's gUilt.'" (Emphasis in Witherspoon 
opinion) 

As. in Chandler, Ms.. Astling did not express. the unyielding con­

viction and rigidity of opinion regarding the death penalty nec­

essary for exclusion under Witherspoon. It can not be said that 

she made unmistakably clear that she would automatically vote 

against the death penalty. The sum total of her testimony was 

that she would have to hear the evidence and then decide whether 

or not she could vote for a recommendation to impose the death 

penalty. The court's interrogation of her did not reveal such 

unyielding conviction and rigidity of opinion. Remember that the 

courtask.ed her if sn.ewould, "a'lmostautomatically" vote against 
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a recommendation of the death penalty, to which she responded, 

"It would influence me, yes .•.• " 

Witherspoon and Chandler are dispositive of this issue. The 

death sentence can not stand. 

IV. HUSBAND - WIFE PRIVILEGE 

Issue:	 May a wife be required to testify against her 
husband over the objections of her husband, 
with regard to communications between the two 
of them while they were husband and wife? 

Section 90.504, Fla. Stat. (1981) provides in pertinent 

part as follows: 

Cll A spouse has a privilege during and after 
the marital relationship to refuse to disclose, 
and to prevent another from disclosing, commun­
ications which were intended to be made in con­
fidence between the spouses while they were hus­
band and wife. 

(2) The privilege may be claimed by either 
spouse •••. " 

Peggy Koon,the wife of appellant, was required to testify 

with respect to communications between she and her husband, after 

the privilege granted by the Statute fiad been invoked by both of 

them CR 938, 940) (A 29, 301. The court ordered that her testi ­

mony' be proffered out of the hearing of the jury. TheAssistant 

United States Attorney called her as a witness and made the pro­

ffer of her testimony' CR 932-959.1. 

The United States Attorney had previously called appellant's 

mother-ln-law CLois Purvis') as a witness against him (R 914). She 
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Both Lois Purvis and George Burton had testified prior to 

the proffer of Peggy Koon's testimony. After hearing the pro-

offer, the court initially ruled that she could not testify about 

communications between her and appellant (R 967-969) (A 31-33) and 

that his statements to Lois Purvis and George Burton were made 

with a reasonable expectation of privacy. 

Section 90.507 Fla. Stat. (1981) states in part:
 

"A person who has a privilege against the
 
disclosure of a confidential matter or
 
communication waives the privilege if
 
he~r .• ' voluntarily discloses or makes
 
the communication when he does not have
 
a reasonable expectation of privacy, ••• "
 

After subsequent argument, the court reversed itself and 

required Peggy Koon to testify concerning such communications (R 

982-9831 (A 34-35) based upon this court's decision in Proffitt 

VS State, 315 So. 2nd 461 (Fla. 19751. She was required to testify 

to communications between her and her husband in a telephone call 

on the evening of November 21st (R 993); and about communications 

between the two of them, later that night, wherein appellant was 

a.lleged to have admitted murdering Dino (R 995~997, 999-1000, 

1003, 1004). 

The trial court was in error in its reliance upon Proffitt. 

However, the Proffitt case does stand for the proposition that the 

privilege attaches. to the conversation or communication itself and 

protects it from exposure and use as evidence (p. 464). See also 

M.ercer VS State, 40 Fla. 216, 24 So. 154 (18981 and Schetter vs 

S'chetter, 239: So. 2nd 51 (:PIa. 4th DCA, 1970) 

The ques·tion pres:ented here is whether or not the alleged con... 

versations: between: appellant and Lois Purvis', his mother-in-law, 
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and he and his son, George Burton, constitutes a waiver of spousal 

privilege, with respect to communications between appellant and 

his wife, Peggy Koon, and depends upon the language of the statute. 

The appropriate words of the statute are " •.• he, ••• voluntar­

ily discloses •.• the communication when he does not have a rea­

sonable expectation of privacy, .•. " There is no evidence in the 

record that appellant at any time disclosed to anyone any commun­

ication between he and his wife, which under the plain language 

of the statute would seem to be necessary in order for there to 

have been a valid waiver on his part, inasmuch as the privilege 

attaches to theconvers'ation or communication itself under Proffitt, 

Mercer, and Schetter supra. 

Before the trial court, the State took the position that the 

conversations testified to by Purvis and Burton, required a find­

ing by the trial court that the spousal privilege had been waived 

by appellant because he voluntarily disclosed to each of them, 

matters reg-arding the same subject matter. There is no question 

here, that the conversations with his mother-in-law, Purvis, and 

his son, Burton, were voluntary. As stated above, neither of said 

convers'ati.ons had anything to do with communications between app­

ellant and Peg'g-y Koon, his wife. The State's contention, however, 

does bring i.nto focus whether or not there was a "reasonable ex­

pectation of privacy" with respect to the Purvis and Burton con­

versations. 

Appellant does not contend that the testimony of either Purvis 

or Burton should have been excluded on the basis of privileg'e but 

surely if such conversations were made as the testimony indicates, 

such conversation with members of his family were made with a rea­
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sonable expectation of privacy, as contemplated by §90.507, 

Fla. Stat. (1981). 

In Griswold vs Connecticut, 381 U.S. 479, 14 L Ed 2nd 510, 

85 S Ct 1678 (1965) the Supreme Court discussed a number of cases 

wherein rights of privacy arose out of the First Amendment, Fourth 

Amendment, Fifth Amendment, Ninth Amendment and the Fourteenth 

Amendment. The cases discussed therein dealt with rights of pri ­

vacy, not specifically mentioned in the Constitution but all com­

ing within the penumbra of rights necessary to give meaning to 

the rights specifically enumerated in those constitutional pro­

visions. Later in Moore vs City of East Cleveland, 431 U.S. 494, 

52 L Ed 2nd 531, 97 S Ct 1932, (1977) the plurality opinion states: 

" .•• Our decisions establish that the Constitu­
tion protects the sanctity of the family pre­
cisely because the institution of the family 
is deeply rooted in this Nation's history and 
tradition. It is through the family that we 
inculcate and pass down many of our most che­
rished values, moral and cultural ...... (p. 503­
504) • 

In Smith vs Organization of Foster Families for Equality and Reform, 

431 U.S. 816, 53 L Ed 2nd 14,97 S Ct 2094 <-1977) the court recog­

nized that the protection of the sanctity of the family was not de­

pendent upon a biological relationship as it had previously recog­

nized in Moore supra. 

In some jurisdictions, the courts have found a privilege pro­

hibiting disclosure of parent-child communications even though 

without statutory law to support such privilege. See In ReAgosto, 

553 F. Supp. 1298 CD.C. Nev. 1983) holding that an adult-child 

could not be compelled to testify against his parent with respect 
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to communications between them; Application of A and M, 403 N.Y. 

S.; 2nd 375{Sup. Ct. App. 1978) refusing to compel a parent to tes­

tify with respect to communications between parenn and child. 

If it be urged that the conversations between appellant and 

his son and between he and his mother-in-law, could form the basis 

of a waiver of privilege with respect to the communications between 

appellant and his wife, the sanctity of the familial relationship 

necessitates the holding that such conversations were with persons 

and under circumstances which demonstrate that a reasonable expec­

tation of privacy was present. 

The compelling of Peggy Koon's testimony with respect to com­

munications between her and appellant, was prejudicial. The 

State's star witness was J.L. Koon. The defense was predicated 

upon the fact th.at J. L. Koon had himself on three occasions told 

three different people, two of whom were his step-brothers, that 

he had blown Joe Dino's head off as a result of drug and counter­

feit money dealinC[fs with Dino (R 1045, 1051-1052, 1056-1057) {A 50, 

51-52, 53-54},. Appellant, an alcoholic, durinC[f a time when he was 

drunk is alleged to have made a s·tatementto Purvis saying that he 

had killed Dino. Purvis, an elderly woman, blind in her left eye, 

having hearing difficulti:es, and being under the influence of med­

ications, apparently was not convinced that she had heard his state­

mentand s'ubsequently asked him if he had told her that, which he 

denied. When appellant allegedly made the statement to Burton, 

he had oeen on a two week bin<iJe,was drinking heavily and was drunk. 

Appellant suffered black. outs and memory loss, secondary to alcohol 

abuse. The compelled testimony of his wife with respect to comm­

unications:between the two of them was devastating to the defense. 

28
 



v. DENIAL OF ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL 

Issue:	 Was appellant deprived of effective assistance 
of counsel guaranteed by the Federal and State 
Constitutions? 

After appellant was indicted and before arraignment, he was 

found to be indigent and an order of indigency was entered. The 

Public Defender was appointed to defend appellant (R 6). A motion 

to dismiss counsel was forwarded to the Judge and received by him 

on October 1, 1982 <:R 74-77). Appellant alleged that counsel was 

adverse and hostile to appellant and that he was deprived of the 

effective assistance of counsel. The matter was scheduled for 

trial on October 5, 1982 (R 185). Those motions were brought for 

hearing at the commencement of the trial on that date. At the 

same time, an attorney in private practice was retained by appe­

llant·s family as additional counsel in the case to assist the 

Public Defender in the trial (R 66, 185). Appellant·s motion to 

dismiss the Public Defender was abandoned and withdrawn (R 193). 

Appellant stated to the court that he was under extreme pressure 

when h.efiled the motion and that he had called the public defender's 

office and asked that it be disregarded (R 1941 (A 5). Additional 

counsel made it clear to the court that he was hired by the family 

to assist the Public Defender" "not to take over the case" (R 188) 

(A 4). Both tfieState and additional counsel objected to the re­

lease of the Public Defender. Nevertheless, the court dismissed 

the PuBlic Defender. 
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On the second day of the four day trial, the court was advis­

ed of conflict between appellant and his attorney and dissatisfac­

tion which had been expressed (R 657) (A 16). Evidence of conflict 

also appears in the record beginning at the commencement of the 

fourth day of trial (R 1026) (A 49). 

At the end of the third day, the State rested its case against 

appellant. At 9:00 a.m. on the fourth day of trial, court convened 

for the defense presentation of its case. After some preliminaries, 

the defense case commenced (R 1022 et seq). At 9:58 a.m. a short 

recess was taken. After the recess, counsel for appellant announ­

ced that the defense rested (R 1060) (A 55). Thus, the defense 

case took up less than 58 minutes of trial time. 

Another recess was taken for a charge conference and upon re­

convening of court, appellant caused counsel to hand to the court 

a hand written letter dismissing the defense attorney alleging as 

reason therefore ineffective assistance of counsel, stating: That 

his attorney had never explained in what directions or way the de­

fensewould go; the failure to explain any and all questions asked 

of him; failure to explain his reasons,· and why; appellant was con­

stantly advlsed to be quiet and not to worry about it; counsel thr­

eatened to qu:i::t i.f appellant didn't stop asking questions; not keep­

ing appellanti.nformed of what happens in his case; failure to pro­

duce eyewitness to the kidnapping; failing to call witnesses that 

would be helpful in defense; never having attorney-elient confer­

ences, although they had been promised several times, latest being 

November 12th and November 15, 19.82 CR 124-125, 1065) fA 2-3,56). 

A recess: was> taken for the court to confer with counsel in 
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chambers. Upon reconvening, appellant told the court: (commen­

cing R l067) 

"THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, if you and Mr. McDonnell and 

Mr. Taylor go in there with me for about five minutes, maybe 

we can straighten this out. There's something in there before 

it should be brought. 

THE COURT: Let's do this procedure first, Mr. Koon. First 

of all, you made a request to discharge your counsel and take 

over the case management yourself. Is that correct? 

THE DEFENDANT: I did not say I'd take it over CR l067} 

myself. I say· if we go, might -- five minutes, we might work 

it out. 

THE CQURT: Why don't we work it out right here in the 

courtroom? 

THE DEFEND]\NT: I'd like to know if Mr. Neil Taylor has seen 

anything liketh.is? I'll give you my date in a minute. 

MR. McDONNELL: Your Honor, may I request that we have the 

Court's ruling on my status for Mr. Koon to proceed? 

THE COURT: Do you want Mr. McDonnell to proceed or not, 

Mr. Koon? 

THE DEFENDANT: If we can <;3'0 in there and have a five ..minute 

recess,may15e, yes~. Right now', no. 

MR. McDONNELL: Your Honor, in that time his petition is on 

th.e record, 1 would ask that the Court-- ask that the Court ask 

on his petttion and request the Court. grant it. 

THE COURT: We'rea,tthe position the trial is jus·t about over 

with. I 've<EJot to know whether you want him to be your counsel. 
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If not, you're going to have to represent yourself, because we' 

re not going to start over again on a trial (R 1068). 

Appellant then alleged several acts of prosecutorial mis­

conduct. Appellant's requests to work things out were ignored. 

" .•. I haven't had a meeting with this man since I hired him, 

five and ten minutes. He's supposed to be in last Friday. I 

haven't seen him. He's supposed to last Monday. I haven't seen 

him. 

THE COURT: Again, the decision is up to you. Do you want 

Mr. McDonnell. 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

THE COURT: All right. You'll have to proceed (R 1069) re­

presenting yourself. 

All right. I'm going to ask some questions to understand 

what you're doing, you are doing. What you're asking is a very 

serious thing. 

At this time Court recommends that you do not represent 

yourself. I at least explained to you on two occasions how ex­

perienced and well thought of trial lawyer Mr. McDonnell is. 

Secondly, I would recommend against discharging Mr. McDonnell 

and you taking over' the case and managing it yours:eTf. In order for 

me to allow you to do that, I'm going to ask you some questions, make 

s'ure you do know what you' redoing. 

You do have a Cons?titutional right to represent yourself if 

you want to. Tha;t's' why I:~m going to let you do so. So, I'm 

. going to ask you these ques,tions' here at this: ti'me. 

* * * 
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All right, sir. How old are you, please? (R 1070) 

THE DEFENDANT: 50.
 

THE COURT: All right, sir. You're still married, is that 

right? 

THE DEFENDANT: Happily. 

THE COURT: What's your education, sir? 

THE DEFENDANT: Fourth grade. 

THE COURT: Can you read and write? 

THE DEFENDANT: Some. 

THE COURT: All right. What type of work do you do? 

THE DEFENDANT: Concreting. 

THE COURT: Have you done this all of your life? 

THE DEFENDANT: Last 27 years. 

THE COURT: All right, sir. Have you ever been treated for 

any mental illness and mental disorder? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Will you tell me about that, please? 

THE DEPENDANT: All in front of these people? No, sir. 

THE COURT: r don't I'm afraid -- would you mind telling 

me about it? 

THE DEFENDANT: I have been treated (R 1071). 

THE COURT: Have you ever been declared incompetent? 

THE DEFENDANT: Not to the best of my knowledge, no. 

THE COURT: Hzrve you ever been in a mental institution? 

THE DEFENDANT: No ,sir. 

THE COURT: All rIgh.t. s·ir. At this· time are you under the 

influence of drugs' or intOXIcating beverag'es? 
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THE DEFENDANT: Some drugs. 

THE COURT: What type of drugs, sir? 

THE DEFENDANT: What they prescribe in the jail, what we 

can get to the officers. 

THE COURT: All right. Are these medications from the 

doctors? 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, they passed them around up there. I 

suppose they're from the doctors. 

THE COURT: All right. Would these drugs have anything to 

to do affect your judgment? 

THE DEFENDANT: T have no idea. Yesterday at twelve o'clock 

I went down to seeth.e doctor and I told him I had things in my 

ears. T had headaches, dizzy. Took my blood pressure. It was a 

hundred sixty-two and a hundred four, and (R 1072) he still not 

prescribing nothXng. 

THE COURT: All right, sir. Has these drugs affected your 

thinking in any way? 

THE DEFENDANT: T h~ve no idea. 

THE COURT: All right, sir. Now, as I stated before, while 

we had the reces:s,we checked the law' and you do havetheConstitu­

t.tonal right to proceed. And out of an abundance of caution, I'm 

going to ask 'Mr. McDonnell to aid you anytime you want him for any 

legal advice, .either on the law involved with this case and/or with 

any of the factual situations that have been presented to the jury. 

H:ewill be. able to advise you at any time you wish to ask him for 

his ..,..- as' far as' his 

THE DEFENDANT: T have no use for him. 
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THE COURT: All right. Any other suggestions now, gentle­

men? 

* * * 
THE COURT: All right, sir. 

Mr. Koon, the only thing that needs to be (R 1073) done to 

complete your case is for the attorneys to give their final ar­

guments and again -­

THE DEFENDANT: I'm not interested in that. 

THE COURT: All right. Do you desire to give the final argu­

ment yourself? 

THE DEFENDANT: How about me just taking over and starting 

from the beginning like I get for him to do? Witness out there he 

didn't call, very important eyewitness. 

THE COURT: Well, it's too late for that now, sir. 

THE DEFENDANT: Well, you do what in the hell you want to 

then. 

THE COURT: All right, sir. we'll proceed. Any other pre­

cautionary remarks' ,gentlemen? 

MR. TAYLOR: The only other thing that remains, your Honor, 

is an inquiry by the Court with regard to the defense proof. 

THE COURT: What is-that now? 

MR. TAYLOR: Tfieinquiry by the Court with regard to the de­

fens-e ,·s deci.s-ionto rest at the time that it rests; that is to say, 

specifically, your Hbnor,thatthedefendant's decision not to 

testify. 

THE COURT; We.ll, T ass'ume that you did not CR 10.741 want to 

testify, is-that corre.ct, sir? 
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THE DEFENDANT: At this point, how can I? 

MR. McDONNELL: Your Honor, I would like to state the de­

fendant has indicated he doesn't want me here. 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

MR. McDONNELL: I don't want to be here, Judge. 

THE DEFENDANT: You're through. Go. 

THE COURT: I understand and feel for you, Mr. McDonnell, but 

there may be a change in the heart in the future, and I'd like you 

available for your legal advice as he desires. 

MR. McDONNELL: Yes, sir. 

THE DEFENDANT: Not for me. He can go. 

THE COURT: All right, sir. Well, you don't have to ask him 

any questions unless you desire to. 

All right. Well, the thing that needs to be done now is for 

the final arguments, and the way the case has been presented, the 

State will fiavetfie opportunity to go first, and then you will have 

the second opportunity and then the State will have a chance for 

rebuttal. 

And with that in mind, gentlemen, anything you (R I075) can 

think of before we need the jury? 

MR. TAYLOR: State's ready. 

THE COURT: Mr. Koon, are you ready, sir? 

THE DEFENDANT: I don't know. I don't have an attorney. (R I076) 

Thereafter,tfi:e As:s'is·tant TIni ted States Attorney made closing 

ar<Jumenton behalf of the State; and appellant made closing argu­

ment on his own bellalf. 
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From the foregoing, it is clear that appellant discharged 

his attorney and stated on three occasions that the disagreements 

leading to said discharge could be resolved with a five minute 

recess. Each time, his statement of possible resolution was ig­

nored by the court. It is clear that appellant's statements as 

for the reason for discharge were allegations of ineffective ass­

istance of counsel. It is clear that the Court failed to make in­

quiry with respect to the allegations of ineffective assistance of 

counsel. It is clear that there are no expressions by appellant 

that he wanted or desired to act in proper person. 

The right of a citizen to have the assistance of counsel for 

his defense is unassailable since Gideon vs Wainwright, 372 U.S. 

335, 9 L Ed 2nd 79~, 83 S Ct 792 (1963). The ~ight to assistance 

means the effective assistance of counsel, Powell VB Alabama, supra. 

The courts have uniformly held that the State has the respon­

sibility to protect this right and to afford effective assistance 

of counsel to those defendants found to be indigent. To protect 

that right and to ensure that the State fulfills its responsibility, 

Florida Courts have held that the trial court has an obligation to 

conduct an inquiry to determine whether there was reasonable cause 

to believe that counsel was not rendering effective assistance 

upon allegations of such being made by an indigent defendant. 

:J;>arker vs State, 423 So. 2nd 553 (Fla. 1st DCA, 1982), Nelson vs 

State, 274 So. 2nd 256 (Fla. 4th DCA, 19731. As stated earlier, 

appellant was found by the trial court to be indigent. No change 

in hisindigency s'tatus' occured during the cours-e of the trial and 

he remains indigent to this date. The State's duty arises under 
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the Fourteenth and Sixth Amendments to the Constitution of the 

United States because of his indigency as well as Article I, 

Section 16 of the Florida Constitution. There is no indication 

in the cases that the doctrine of Parker and Nelson is not depen­

dent upon that status, even though in those cases, the allegations 

of ineffective assistance of counsel had to do with court app­

ointed counsel. 

Persuasive on this issue, is the decision of the Supreme 

Court in Townsendvs Sain, 372 U.S. 293, 9 LEd 2nd 770, 83 S Ct 

745 (1963). There, the Supreme Court setout the standards to be 

used in deterrninin9' whether or not a defendant was entitled to an 

evidentiary hearing on a habeas corpus' peti tion from a State court 

conviction. Among other thin9's, it held that an evidentiary hear­

ing must be granted when merits of the factual dispute were not 

resolved in the State hearing. The factual dispute here in the 

appellant's allegations was that his counsel was rendering ineff­

ective assistance. No inquiry of any kind was made by the trial 

court. 

The specific facts of this case are that after appointment of 

c0uns:el, .thefamily of appellant retained private counsel to assist 

the Public Defender in the defense, not to take over the case. The 

Court's release of the Public Defender from its obli9'ations to the 

defenS'e forced additional counsel to take over the case and begin 

tts preparation anew with less than six weeks to prepare for a 

trial of first degree murder. There was an apparent lack of com­

munication between attorney and cl:i.:ent, result:i.:ng :i.:n d:i.:ssatisfaction 

expres~sed early on in tne trial. 
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The appellant made it clear to the court that his decision 

to dispense with the services of his attorney at the trial was 

because of what he felt to be ineffective assistance of counsel. 

Upon making such allegations in writing (R 124) and orally, it was 

the duty of the court to conduct an evidentiary hearing or some 

type of inquiry to determine whether there was reasonable cause to 

believe that the allegations of appellant were supported by the 

facts. 

On three occasions, appellant stated to the court, that the 

matter was susceptible to being worked out. In each instance, the 

court ignored the appellant's statement. The court failed to in­

quire with respect to the ineffective assistance of counsel all­

egations as it was required to do by Florida case law. Had it 

done so, an appropriate course for the remainder of the trial could 

have been decided upon, which could have protected appellant's rights 

and allowed the trial to proceed to its conclusion in an orderly 

fashion. This failure of the trial court permeates this issue as 

well as other issues following hereafter. 

The trial court apparently found that appellant waived his 

righ.tto counsel upon dismissal of his privately retained attorney. 

However, such is error because the trial court failed to inquire 

into the reasonaBleness of his dissatisfaction upon which the dis­

missal was based•. As in this case, in Keene VS State, 420 So. 2nd 

9:0.8 (Fla. ls·t DCA, 19821 appellant never asserted that he wished to 

represent himself: 

" .•. Federal cases' following Faretta hold that 
Fare.tta requires that a defendant's request to 
proceed proseheclear and unequivocal.. See, 
e.<.;J., ·U.S'.' yS'Belinett, 539' F. 2nd 45 (lOthCir. 
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1976), cert denied, .•• ; U.S. vs Montgomery, 
529 F. 2nd 1404 (lOth Cir. 1976), cert denied, 

It (p. 910) 

In this case, there was no unequivocal statement by appellant to 

indicate that he wished to conduct his own defense. Every rea­

sonable presumption against waiver must be indulged. Johnson vs 

Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458, 82 L Ed 1461, 58 8 Ct 1019 (1938); Brookhart 

vs Janis, 384 U.8. 1, 16 L Ed 2nd 314, 86 8 Ct 1245 (1966); Brewer 

vs Williams, 430 U.8. 387, 51 L Ed 2nd 424, 97 S Ct 1232 (1977). 

In this case, the trial court apparently assumed that the 

right to counsel was waived despite the protestations by appellant. 

The court ignored the statement on three occasions by appellant 

that the problem could be worked out, thus allowing him to continue 

with retained counsel; the court failed to conduct any kind of in­

quiry to determine the reasonableness of appellant's dissatisfaction 

with his attorney; thus the court's insistance that he utilize re­

tained counselor proceed on his own deprived appellant of his con­

stitutionally guaranteed right to effective assistance of counsel 

under the Sixth Amendment to the United States Constitution and 

under Article I, Section 16 of the Florida Constitution. 

VI. FAILURE TO REOPEN 

rssue:	 Did the Court err in refus.ing to allow the 
appellant to reopen the case to producetes­
timony of an additional witness that dis­
charged defense counsel would not or did not 
call? 

Two of the grounds' r:riven by appellant for discharr:re of coun­

sel were that counsel failed to produce eyewitnesses to the kid­
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napping and failed to call witnesses that would be helpful in his 

defense. The failure of the Court to inquire as to the basis for 

the alleged ineffective assistance of counsel was compounded by 

the failure of the court to allow appellant, when required to take 

over his case, to call a very important witness (p.35 , supra, R 

1074) (A 57). At the time the request was made, the last thing 

that had occurred in the progress of the trial was the announce­

ment by the defense that the defense rested. The closing argu­

ments had not been made; the court had not instructed the jury; and 

the matter had not been submitted to the jury for its consideration. 

There's no ab.solute right to put on a witness after close of 

evidence but the court has the discretion to allow it. Pitts vs 

State, 185 So. 2nd 164 (Fla. 1966). The trend is to allow reopen­

ing where such can be done without prejudice to the other party. 

32 Fla. Jur . Trials , 268. In Pitts, .the trial court allowed the 

State to reopen the case and introduce additional testimony after 

the matter had been submitted to the jury. The Supreme Court found 

no error in the trial court allowing such to be done. 

In Steffanos VS State, 80 Fla. 309, 86 So. 204 (1920), where 

the facts weresimiliar to this case,the State and the defense 

had rested on Saturday evening and upon reconvening on Monday morn­

ing, the motion to reopen was made. The Supreme Court, on appeal, 

stated: 

" ••• To preclude one from introducing evidence so 
material to his defense and persuasive, perhaps, 
of lUs innocence, merely because he had said that 
he had no more testimony to offer, is to enforce 
a rule of procedure almost to the point of a den­
ial of jus,tice. It is to sacrifice liberty to a 
mere form of procedure or courtroom usuage, the 
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observance of which is to bring about the 
orderly introduction of evidence by the res­
pective parties •.•. They should be enforced 
or relaxed in the furtherance of justice. 
The motion was to reopen the case, but the 
case was not technically closed. The judge 
had not charged the jury; the counsel had 
not begun the arguments; the case had not 
been submitted. It had only reached that 
stage where each party announced that it 
rested; ••• " 

* * * 
" ••• Even if the case had been technically 
closed, it would have been an abuse of dis­
cretion to refuse to open the case and per­
mit the evidence to be introduced, upon the 
proper showing being made as to why it had 
been previously omitted•.•• 

While the record does not disclose that 
any showing was made when the motion was 
submitted, yet the cause had not proceeded 
so far that the ends of justice would have 
been defeated, or the orderly processes of 
the court disturbed, by an admission of the 
testimony...... (p. 205-206) 

The court held that the refusal to allow the evidence was an abuse 

of discretion. 

In two cases from the Third District Court of Appeals, that 

court held thatth.e refusal by the trial judge to reopen the case 

and receive additional testimony, where the proposed evidence was 

proffered or where the trial court exercised due diligence in det­

ermining whatth.e additional evidence would disclose was not error. 

King vs State, 272 So. 2nd 821 (Fla. 3rd DCA, 19731; Sylvia vs 

State, 210 So. 2nd 286 (Fla. 3rd DCA, 196B1. In this case, the 

court did not provide for a proffer nor did it attempt to determine 

what the additional evidence would disclose but simply disposed of 

appellant 'sreques~t summarily. 

After the United states Attorney made closing argument to the 
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jury, in a bench conference, the following occurred: 

"THE DEFENDANT: Can I get this postponed and give me about 

couple weeks to get my stuff together? 

THE COURT: No, sir. We're ready to go. 

THE DEFENDANT: But I'm not. I don't have an attorney. I 

would like you to appoint me one. 

THE COURT: I'm afraid I explained to you it's too late now. 

THE DEFENDANT: Why is it too late? The man didn't go through 

my case and do it like it's supposed to. 

THE COURT: It's your turn to address the jury at this time 

and you certainly have that right. Go and exercise that right if 

you want to. 

THE DEFENDANT: But you won't give me two weeks postponement? 

THE COURT: No, sir. (R 1091-1092) 

* * * 
THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, I do not have an attorney. I 

don't want Mr. McDonnell to represent me and I don't know how. 

THE COURT: All right, sir. 

THE DEFENDANT: I want you to appoint me an attorney. 

(R 1092) 

* ** 
THE COURT: Mr. Koon, Mr. McDonnell is right behind you and 

he's able to give the final argument for you in you want him to 

do so. 

THE DEFENDANT: Your Honor, I asked him to bring a subpoena 

for the eyewitness of the kidnapping so he can describe who was 

there. That hasn't been done. He had a map drawn by J.L. Koon 
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where there was a suitcase of money on north Florida and $400 

given to a witness that went up there look for the money. That 

would tie J.L. Koon in with Dino and wouldn't -- he hadn't got 

a third of the witness that knows about it. 

THE COURT: All right, sir. Again, you're going to have 

to make that, an election whether or not you want to address 

the jury. 

THE DEFENDANT: I don't want to address the jury and I don't 

want Mr. McDonnell to do it. I want you to appoint me an attorney 

(R 1093). 

Then Mr. Koon addressed the jury on his own behalf. 

The foregoing excerpt shows the appellant again complaining 

about the failure to produce witnesses, one of whom was an eye 

witness to the kidnapping, with his description of who was there. 

Such a witness could have disputed the testimony of the state's 

star witness,J.L. Koon and reflected upon his credibility as a wit ­

ness on behalf of the state and the failure to produce witnesses 

with respect to the map and suitcase of money could have tied J.L. 

Koon directly to Dino, further attacking his credibility and the 

credibility of his testimony. Had the trial court sought to deter­

mine the reason for appellant's complaints against counsel, and the 

extent of the testimony of the eyewitnesses that appellant sought 

to call as tfie trial court did in Sylvia, then the record would have 

been complete for this' court's consideration of this issue. The 

trial court's failure is of critical importance in light of the 

fact that appellant complained of ineffective assistance of counsel 

who had announced to the court that the defense rested; was 

fifty years old, with minimal education; and cannot in 
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any way be considered skilled in the technical niceties of court­

room and trial procedures. 

The failure of the court to allow appellant to call additional 

witnesses for testimony, in light of the circumstances in this case, 

is an abuse of discretion. See Steffanos, supra. The verdict and 

judgment rendered in this case should be overturned and the case 

remanded to the lower court for retrial. 

VII. SENTENCE PHASE OF TRIAL 

The right to counsel is fundamental and guaranteed by both 

the United States and Florida Constitutions. 

After the receipt of the guilty verdict on Friday, November 

19th, the court continued the matter for the sentence phase of 

the trial until Monday, November 22nd. When the court reconvened, 

Mr. Koon asked that an attorney be appointed for him (R 1154-1155) 

(A 58-59). He also stated that he had not been able to make a tele­

phone call until 8:30 the previous evening and that he had visited 

with his wife; she was supposed to see an attorney and asked for a 

chance to confer with her, to determine the outcome of her efforts. 

Th_e court would not allow such CR 1156) (A 60) • 

The court again encouraged appellant to use Mr. McDonnell, 

whom he had discharged the preceding Friday, which he refused to 

do ,and~'1r. McDonnell was released for any responsibility with re­

spectto the defens.e CR 1167}. 

Appellant filed a handwritten motion for mistrial (R 127-129, 

1156 .....1157). 
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The Assistant United States Attorney made opening argument to 

the jury	 with respect to the sentence phase of the trial (R 1181­

1183) (A 61-63). Appellant refused to participate without an att ­

orney (R 1183). No witnesses were called and the State offered 

Exhibits 21 and 22. Again, appellant refused to participate with­

out an attorney (R 1184) (A 64). Exhibits 21 and 22 were received 

and pUblished to the jury (R 1184). Again, appellant asked to 

speak with his wife about "legal work in Miami", which was denied 

by the court (R 1184). The State rested its case again, appell ­

ant refused to participate "without an attorney" (R 1185) (A 65). 

The court asked appellant for his response to the proposed inst­

ructions, he replied by stating that he didn't understand the ins­

tructions (R 1186) (A 66). 

During the proceedings outside the presence of the jury, the 

Assistance United States Attorney, with the approval of the court, 

removed from Exhibits 21 and 22, termination of probation sheets 

not relevant to crime charged by exhibit 21 and pages from exhibit 

22, which according to state were tlo,t relevant and were prejudicial 

to appellant CR ll87-1188} (A 67-68). These documents had already 

been examined by the jury (R 1184) (A 64). These documents are not 

a part of the record. 

TheA,ssistant United States Attorney made final argument, with 

respect to the sentence phase of the trial CR 1189-1197). Again, 

appel1antrefus-ed to participate without an attorney (R 1197) (A 70). 

The jury returned with a recommendation that the death penalty be 

assessed by a 12 .... 0 vote CR 12061. 

Is;sue:	 Did the courterI:' in failing to continue the 
sentenctng ph~seof the trial in order to allow 
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appellant to obtain counselor in the
 
alternative appoint an attorney for him?
 

Section 921.141(1) Fla. Stat. (1981) provides that the court 

shall conduct a separate sentencing procedure to receive a rec­

ommendation with respect to sentence "as soon as practicable". 

It further provides that should it be impossible or the court be 

unable to conduct the proceeding before the trial jury that another 

jury may be empaneled for the purpose of the statute. 

There is nothing in the record to indicate that it was nec­

essary that the matter be brought before the trial jury on Monday 

morning following its verdict of guilty of Friday afternoon. The 

right to effective assistance of counsel is fundamental. The 

State has the responsibility to protect that fundamental right. 

The failure of the court to allow defendant to confer with his wife, 

with respect to obtaining additional counsel and the insistence by 

the court upon proceeding without delay, left appellant with the 

choice of being represented by counsel, whom he had previously dis­

missed because of the alleged ineffective assistance of that coun­

sel, which issue had not been inquired into, heard, or determined, 

or attempt to represent himself or to not participate in the pro­

ceedings. Appellant chose the latter. The effect of the court's 

actions deprived appellant of his right to effective assistance of 

counsel and further deprived the proceedings of the elemental fair ­

ness necessary to afford due process, especially in light of there 

being no reason why it was impractical to grant a continuance for 

a short period of time to determine the availability of privately 

acquired counsel and if so,when such counsel might have been avail ­

able. 
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Issue: Did the court err in allowing introduction of 
exhibit 21, which was ambiguous on its face 
into evidence? 

section 921.141(5) Fla. Stat. (1981) sets out the aggravating 

circumstances which may be considered by the jury in rendering its 

recommendation or by the court in sentencing. The aforementioned 

statutory provision is designed to limit the unbridled exercise of 

judicial discretion where the penalty of death is possible. One of 

the aggravating circumstances, which may be considered, is whether 

the appellant was previously convicted of a felony involving the 

use or threat of violence to the person. Pursuant to that provis­

ion, the trial court allowed exhibit 21 into evidence. Such evi­

dence is limited to convictions. Charges of commission of crimes 

are excluded. Provence vs state, 337 So. 2nd 783 (Fla. 1976). 

Exhibit 21 arose out of a criminal proceeding in the criminal 

court of record, Dade County, Florida, in 1971. Appellant and 

another were charged with two counts of assault with intent to 

commit murder. 

Exhibit 21 consists of copies of the Bench Docket, Probation 

Form 3-F and the Information. The Bench Docket explicitly states 

that appellant plead nolo contendere to aggravated assault, not to 

assault with intent to commit murder. Probation Form 3-F indicates 

that he plead nolo contenderetoaggrav'ated 'assault with intent to 

'cotnrrtit murder and reflects that he was placed on probation for a 

period of three years •. If, as the Bench Docket indicates, appell ­

ant plead nolo contendere to aggravated assault, then allowing the 

ProbationPorm 3-P and the Information charging appellant assault 

"wlthl' intent to commI,t murder, was error. Those charges were never 
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resolved by a plea, trial or otherwise and the presumption of 

innocence attached to those charges remains in effect. Odum vs 

State, 403 So. 2nd 936 (Fla. 1981); Perry vs State, 395 So. 2nd 

170 (Fla. 1980); Spaziano vs State, 393 So. 2nd 1119 (Fla. 1981) 

This case must be distinguished from Elledg~ vs State, 346 

So. 2nd 998 (Fla. 1977) and Morgan vs State, 415 So. 2nd 6 (Fla. 

1982). In both of those cases, appellant was convicted and the 

court allowed testimony concerning the offense which resulted in 

the conviction. However, here appellant was never convicted of 

aggravated assault to commit murder and evidence of such was error 

and should not have been admitted. Therefore, the sentence must 

be overturned. 

Further, appellant's failure to object to the introduction 

of exhibit 21 is not material here inasmuch as defendant was denied 

effective assistance of counsel as argued supra. 

Issue;	 Did the court err in allowing the Assistant 
United States Attorney to argue that appe­
llant had been previously convicted of ass­
ault with intent to commit murder? 

Issue:	 Was it error for the court to instruct the 
jury with respect to assault with intent 
to commit murder? 

In closing argument, the Assistant United States Attorney 

argued that appellant had previously been convicted of assault 

with intent to commit murder (R 1191) (A 69). In its instructions 

to the jury, the court charged the jury with respect to the crime 

of assault to commit murder (R 11991 (A 711. The questions posed 

by th.ese issues must be answered in the affirmative in light of the 

ar~umentand authorities here·tofore cited. The sentence must be 

overturned. 
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VIII. SENTENCE HEARING 

By petition dated November 29, 1983 and received by the 

trial judge on December 1, 1982, appellant petitioned the court 

for appointment of counsel (R 132). On December 6, 1982, app­

ellant filed a petition asking for the registration visit record 

of the Collier County Jail from October 2, 1982, specifically 

with respect to visits by the additional attorney retained by his 

family for consultation with appellant. The court responded to the 

first petition on December 20, 1982, by appointing the Public De­

fender's office to represent appellant. The record does not re­

flect any response by the court to the second petition mentioned 

above until the sentence hearing on January 28, 1983, when it was 

denied (R 1213). The second petition goes to appellant's conten­

tion, made during the fourth day of trial at the time he dismissed 

the attorney, that said attorney's assistance was ineffective and 

would show that there was an absence of out of court consultation 

between said attorney and appellant from October 25th to the time 

of his discharge during the fourth day of trial. 

At the commencement of the sentence hearing, as Assistant Pub­

lic Defender was present. He stated, at appellant's request, that 

appellant had not seeri an attorney since his conviction and that 

further, he had not had any consultation with an attorney and 

that he thinks that's wron<j (R 1213). Appellant renewed his peti­

tion for the registration visit record of the Collier County Jail, 

specifically pertaining to visits by his attorney for consultation 

with him CR l2l3L Appellant then stated: 
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"THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. If you'd appoint -- I've asked 

you to appoint me attorney for today. That's way over a month. 

I haven't heard an answer from you. I haven't heard an answer 

from Mr. Osteen. I've sent a question down by Corporal Greene 

in the jail. I've called the Public Defender's. I've had not 

response and no visits." (R 1215-1216) 

The foregoing statements by appellant are not controverted 

in any way. 

The court then advised appellant that it was his right to 

discharge Mr. Osteen, which he did (R 1217). 

The appellant then denied certain allegations contained in 

the Presentence Investigation Report (R 157-163) two of which are 

material here in that they were relied upon by the court and are 

set out in paragraphs 1. A. and B. of the court's Findings In 

Support of Sentence of Death (R 144-145). Appellant's denials of 

those factual allegations are set out at pages 1219 and 1220 of the 

record. Appellant invited the court to inquire of his wife and 

mother-in-law, who were present in the courtroom, with respect to 

those matters set out in paragraph 1 B. The court refused to do 

so (R 12201. 

Appellant asked for a sixty day extension and than a thirty 

day extension to alloW' his wife to contact attorneys to "finish up 

what's been started". The court denied the motion (R 1223). 

The court then sentenced appellant to be: _executed (R 1224). 

Issue:	 Did the court err in failing to provide for 
effedtive assistance of counsel to appellant 
pri:or to and at the sentence hearing? 
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As stated above, the trial court on December 20, 1982 app­

ointed the Public Defender's office to represent the appellant. 

The uncontroverted evidence before the court at the sentence hear­

ing was that no attorney had made contact with appellant with re­

gard to the sentence hearing or any other matter since appellant's 

conviction on November 19, 1982. The presence of Mr. Osteen at 

the sentence hearing, without prior consultation with appellant 

and without proper preparation (no preparation is apparent in the 

record) can not be said to furnish effective assistance of counsel 

at the sentence hearing. In Gardner vsFlorida, 430 u.s. 349, 51 

L Ed 2nd 393, 97 S Ct 1197 (1977) in the opinion of Stevens, joined 

by Stewart and Powell, it is stated that the sentencing process 

must satisfy the requirements of due process. It is further stated 

that: 

" •.• sentencing is a critical stage of the 
criminal proceeding at which he is entitled 
to effective assistance of counseL •.• " Cp. 358) 

Gideon, Powell, Townsend, Parker, Nelson, supra make it clear 

that effecti.ve as'sistance of counsel is required by the Sixth and 

Fourteenth Amendments of the United States constitution. Here, as 

at earlier stages of the trial, the court failed to make an inquiry 

with respect to appellant's plea of ineffective assistance of cou­

naBl Dutsi:mply' forged ahead with the sentencing process. Again, 

had the court heeded appellant's plea, a method could have been 

devised which would have allowed the court to proceed in an orderly 

manner and s,ti.ll protect appellant's constitutionally guaranteed 

:t'ights'. 
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Issue:	 Did the court err in failing to continue the
 
sentence hearing in order to allow appellant
 
an opportunity to obtain private counsel?
 

Under the circumstances of this case and upon appellant's 

continued meritorious pleas of ineffective assistance of counsel, 

the failure of the court to grant a continuance was error and vio­

lated due process of law, as required by the Fifth and Fourteenth 

Amendments of the United States Constitution and Section 9, Art­

icle I of the Florida Constitution. 

Issue:	 Did the court err in basing its judgment 
ordering the execution of appellant upon 
portions of the Presentence Investigation 
Report, which were controverted by appellant? 

Aggravating circumstances applicable to the death penalty must 

be proved beyond a reasonable doubt before being considered by 

the court. Statevs Dixon, 283 So. 2nd 1, 9 (Fla. 1973). Those 

matters in aggravation relied upon the trial court as set out in 

paragraph 1 A. of its findings were directly contradicted by appe­

llantexcept for those matters relating to his conviction in Fed­

eral Court of Interstate Transportation of a Stolen Motor Vehicle. 

The record is devoid of any proof of the remaining matters in said 

paragraph except for th_e bare allegations in the Presentence In­

vestigation Report, which were contradicted by appellant. Clearly 

the proof of such does not meet the standard of this court as en­

unciated .in State vs: Dixon. 

With respect to those matters setout in para<Jraph 1 B. appe­

llant not only contradicted the bare allegations of the presentence 

investigation but also inv.i.ted the court to interrogate two wit­
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nesses who were present with respect to those matters, which 

the court refused to do. As stated above, in Gardner vs Florida 

supra, the opinion of Stewart, joined by two others and the opin­

ions of Brennan and Marshall require that the sentencing process 

must satisfy the requirement of due process. Reliance by the 

trial court upon those controverted matters violates due process 

guarantees of the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United 

States Consitution and Section 9, Article I of the Florida Con­

stitution. 

Issue:	 Did the court err in finding no mitigating: 
circumstances in the case? 

In Section II of this brief, the failure of the court to 

grant the motion for continuance to allow receipt of the reports 

from physicians appointed to examine appellant is fully discussed. 

It is clear that it is highly possible that had such been done, a 

defense in mitigation based upon those reports would have been av­

ai.lable because of appellant's long history of alcohol abuse, organ­

ic brain syndrome, and his drunken state upon the day he has alleged 

to have killed Joseph Dino. Such factors are specifically contem­

plated in mitigation. S·tate V'sDixon, supra at page 10. 

J:ssue:	 Was·th.e homicide committed' in a cold, calcu­
lated and premeditated manner without any 
pretens'e of moral or legal justification. 

Issue:	 Was' the homicide especially heinous, atro­
cious- and cruel? 

JosepttDino was a counte.rfeiter who by his admission had trans­

ferred approximately $500,000.00: in counterfeit money to appellant 

(ExblOand III CR 598-599, 6031. 
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Appellant was a chronic alcoholic and had consumed large 

quantities of alcoholic beverages on the day and evening that 

he has alleged to have killed Joseph Dino. The extent of his 

drunken state according to the unrefuted testimony .is set out on 

pages 12 and 13, supra. 

It does not appear from all of the circumstances in this 

case that the acts of appellant were especially heinous, atroci­

ous or cruel as required by Tedder vs State, 322 So. 2nd 908 (Fla. 

1975), nor does the court's finding that the homicide was cold, 

calculated and premeditated in light of appellant's drunken state, 

appear to meet the "reasonable doubt" requirement of Statevs 

Dixon, supra. 

IX. DENIAL OF DUE PROCESS 

I'ssue:	 Did the proceedings in the trial court 
afford appellant fundamental fairness 
as required by due process? 

The actions in the trial court in this matter, in their tot­

ality during the pretrial phase, during th.e guilt phase of the 

trial, during the sentence phase of the trial and at sentencing, 

fai:led to meet the standards of "fundamental fairness" required 

by tneFifthand Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Consti ­

tuti'on and Article I, Section 9 of the Florida Constitution. 

Tne'ctrcums'tances' in their totality are: The court allowed 

the Public Defender to withdraw from representation of appellant 

wli.en appellant's family retained additional counsel to assist the 
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Public Defender and not to take over the case six weeks before 

the commencement of the trial thus requiring preparation for the 

trial to begin anew; failure of the court to grant the motion to 

continue the trial to allow the receipt and study of appointed 

physician's reports; the court's excusing for cause venirewoman 

Astling; the absence of attorney-client conferences in prepara­

tion for defense (possibly as a result of the limited amount of 

time within which to prepare the defense); failure of the court to 

make any inquiry into appellant's allegations of ineffectiveness 

of counsel immediately following counsel's announcement that the 

defense rested; requiring appellant to represent himself at closing 

argurnentafter the court failed to inquire into appellant's alle­

gations of ineffectiveness of counsel and after appellant's repeated 

statements that the matter could be worked out, which were ignored 

by the court; the failure of the court to allow appellant to confer 

with his wife to determine whether or not she had made progress in 

obtaining counsel at the commencement of the sentence phase of the 

tr.i:al; the admission of exhibit 21 during the sentence phase of the 

trial, which because of its ambiguity allowed the jury to believe 

that appellant had been convicted of two counts of aggravated ass­

ault with .i:ntentto commit murder Isic]; the admission and publish­

ing to tfie jury of irreve1ant and prejudicial material attached to 

State.s exhibits 21 and 22, whicfi were published to the jury and 

s'uoS'equently detached from said exhibits oy the Assistant United 

States~ Attorney; allowing the Assistant Un.i:ted States Attorney to 

argue.i:n closing at the sentence phase of the trial that appellant 

fiad oeen convicted of two counts of assault with_the intent to commit 
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murder; instructing the jury at the close of the sentence phase 

of the trial with respect to assault with intent to commit murder; 

failure of the court to inquire into appellant's allegations that 

even though counsel had been appointed for the sentence hearings, 

there had been no contact by appointed counsel with appellant 

prior to sentencing; the failure to grant a continuance at the 

sentence hearing after failing to inquire into appellant's allega­

tions of ineffective assistance of counsel so that appellant could 

attempt to obtain private counsel; and the reliance by the court 

upon controverted information in it's finding upon which the death 

sentence was based without proof of the truthfulness of said con­

troverted allegations. 

The proposition is stated at 14Fla.Jur.2nd, Criminal Law, 

134 as follows: 

"The essential requirement exacted of the states� 
:Oy the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amend­�
ment, as respects the trial of persons accused of� 
crime, is that the trial shall be fair. The United� 
States~ Supreme Court has said, in this connection,� 
that denial of due process, as applied to a criminal� 
trial, isa failure to observe that fundamental fair­�
ness essential to the very concept of justice ••.• "� 

In Las:siter' VS Departm;entof Social Services, 452 U.S. 18, 68 L Ed 

2nd 640,101 S Ct 2153 (1981), the court stated at page 24: 

"'For all its consequence,·· 'due process' has never 
heen, and perhaps can never be, precisely defined. 
qU]tilIRe some legal rules,' this Court has said, 
due process" 'is nota technical conception with a 
fixed content unrelated to time, place and circum­
s,tances. ' ••• Rather ,the phrase expresses the re­
quirementof 'fundamental fairness,' a requirement 
whose meaning Can be as opague as' i tsimportance 
IS' lofty .•• ·~" 
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In Lisenba vs California, 314 U.S. 219,86 L Ed 166, 62 S Ct 

280 (1941) at page 236, the court stated: 

"As applied to a criminal trial, denial of 
due process is the failure to observe that 
fundamental fairness essential to the very 
concept of justice••.• " 

Spencer vs Texas, 385 U.S. 554, 17 L Ed 2nd 606, 87 S Ct 648 (19£7) 

the court said: 

" ••• Cases in this Court have long proceeded 
on the premise that the Due Process Clause 
guarantees the fundamental elements of fair­
ness in a criminal trial .••• " (p. 563-564) 

The totality of the events and actions set out above, demon­

strate that the trial of appellant did not meet the "fundamental 

fairness" standard of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States 

Constitution and requires setting aside the judgment of guilty and 

sentence of death. 
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CONCLUSION 

The precise relief sought by appellant is as follows: 

A. With respect to the issue presented in section I of the 

Brief, a reversal of the judgment and sentence in the trial court 

and remand to that court with directions to dismiss the indictment 

against appellant; or in the alternative, 

B. With res'pect to those issues presented in sections II, 

IV, V, VI and IX of the Brief, reversal of the judgment and sent­

encein the trial court and remand for a new trial, or in the 

alternative, 

C. With respect to the issues presented in sections III and 

VI'I of the Brief, reversal of the sentence in the trial court and 

remand for a new trial on the sentence phase of the trial, or in 

the alternative, 

D. WitfL respect to those issues presented in section VIII of 

the: Bri:ef, reversal of the sentence of the trial court and remand 

w~thdirections to enter a sentence of life in prison for appellant, 

or that a new sentence hearing be held. 

Respectifully submitted, 

Thomas S. Bigg-s,J'r 
Attorney for Appell 
Sui te20.2 Congress enter 
849 7th Avenue, South 
Naples, Florida 33940 
C8l3) 261 ....0275 
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